
T-385 
Chenar Farm 
9284 Chenar Farm Road 
Easton Vicinity 
Ca. 1922-1923 
Private 

Chenar Farm is a gentleman's farm located on 95.50 acres of land on the banks of the Miles 

River, to the west of the community of Easton in Talbot County, Maryland and contains eighteen 

structures. The structures include a residence, boathouse, tool shed, powerhouse, cook's house, 

smokehouse, carriage house, garage, dairy barn, corncrib, animal shed, stable, silo, three tenant 

houses, gas house, and a machine shed. 

The property known as Chenar Farm, also known variously as "Bennett's Neglect," "Mackay 

Farm," and "Sycamores," represents an intact collection of agricultural buildings associated with 

the historically important trend of the gentleman farmer and the development of the dairy industry 

in Talbot County. The property was purchased by James M. and Lida A. Cowgill in 1891 from 

Sarah A. Mackey, F. Eugenia Smith, and her husband, Sidney W. Smith. The Cowgills sold the 

property to Winfield Scott Way and his wife Kate A. in 1908, who owned the property until 1914 

when it was purchased by Louis A. and Amanda J. Hazard. The Hazards sold the farm to Ernst 

Puttkammer in 1917. Henry F. DePuy purchased the property from Ernst Puttkammer and his 

wife in 1919 and began construction of the house, grounds, and agricultural buildings found on 

the property today. Mr. DePuy utilized earlier residences remaining on the property as tenant 

houses. The trustee of the DePuy Estate sold the property to Leia Bartlett Hughes in 1925. The 

property has remained within the Hughes family since that time. 
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1. Name of Property 
historic Chenar Farm 

other Bennett's Neglect; Mackay Farm; Sycamores 

2. Location 
street and number 9284 Chenar Farm Road N/A not for publication 

city, town Easton _X vicinity 

county Talbot 

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name Thomas R. Hughes, Jr. 

street and number 9284 Chenar Farm Road telephone 410-822-0454 

city, town Easton state IVID zip code 21601 

4. Location of Legal Description 
counhouse. registry of deeds, etc. Talbot County Courthouse liber 496 folio 598 and liber 479 folio 249 

city, town Easton tax map 24/11 tax parcel 37 tax ID number 036092 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 

. Contributing Resource in National Register District 

. Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 

. Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
_ Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
. Recorded by HABS/HAER 
Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT 
Other: 

6. Classification 

Category 
district 

X buildinq(s) 
structure 
site 
object 

Ownership 
public 

X private 
both 

Current Function 
X agriculture 

commerce/trade 
defense 

X domestic 
education 
funerary 
government 
health care 
industry 

Resource Count 
Jandscape 
_recreation/culture 
_religlon 
_social 
Jransportation 
_work in progress 
_unknown 
_vacant/not in use 
other: 

Contributing 
16 

1 

17 

Noncontributing 
1 buildings 

sites 
structures 
objects 

1 Total 

Number of Contributing Resources 
previously listed in the Inventory 

0 



7. Description Inventory No. T-385 ' 

Condition 

excellent deteriorated 
J<_good _ ruins 

fair altered 

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

Summary Description 
Chenar Farm is located on 95.50 acres of land on the banks of the Miles River, to the west of the community of Easton in 
Talbot County, Maryland and contains eighteen structures. The structures include a residence, boathouse, tool shed, 
powerhouse, cook's house, smokehouse, carriage house, garage, dairy barn, corncrib, animal shed, stable, silo, three 
tenant houses, gas house, and a machine shed. , 

The main residence is located approximately one-eighth of a mile down a straight gravel access road. The agricultural 
buildings are located on the north side of the access road and are arranged in a linear plan that forms a square farmyard. 
The domestic outbuildings are located adjacent to the main residence. A ca. 1910 tenant house is located on the northern 
side of the road, closest to the main house. A ca. 1930 tenant house is located directly to the northwest of tenant house 
#1 and is separated from the main complex by cultivated agricultural fields and trees. A ca. 1890 tenant house is located 
furthest from the main house and northeast of tenant house #2. The property is surrounded by cultivated agricultural fields 
and water. The property is an active farm. 

The landscaping was designed by J. Franklin Meehan & Son, a landscape architecture firm with offices located in Mt. Airy, 
Maryland and Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. The plan called for the property to be approached down a long road lined with 
sycamores, and with the main house at the end of the drive with a circular driveway and grassy circle in the front. 
Between the main house and the Miles River, the land gently slopes with specimen plantings. Gardens were to be located 
to the south of the house. The original plans also called for a formal flower garden, arbors for roses and vines, a berry 
garden, a vegetable garden, and grape vines. The landscape plan was followed closely, with the exception of the garden 
area. The formal garden was developed in its intended location, but there are no traces of the planned arbors, berry 
garden, vegetable garden, or grape vines. In the intended vegetable garden location a second formal garden was planted. 
The areas away from the main house were left as grassy fields, with deciduous trees planted as windbreaks and view 
screens. The house, tool house, powerhouse, and tenant house #1 are located amongst dense overgrowth. 

IViain House, ca. 1923 
The main house is a two-and-a-half story wood frame structure with a two-story south side wing and a one-story north 
side wing, built ca. 1923. The residence was designed by Frank Ross, an Easton architect. The side wings are part of the 
original design. The building rests on a continuous brick masonry foundation and has a central passage, double-pile plan. 
The hipped roof with large overhanging eaves is clad with asphalt shingles and has four hipped roof dormers with 8-pane 
hopper sashes. Two dormers are located on each of the front and rear fagades. There are two exterior end gable brick 
masonry chimneys. 

The west facade is the principle building entry and faces the entry drive. The walls are clad with wood shingles. The 
building is entered through a central hinged four panel wood front door with fifteen-light sidelights. The side entry doors 
are hinged five panel wood doors. The windows are a combination of six-over-one and eight-over-one wood sashes. The 
front entry porch has a poured concrete floor, two fluted wood Doric columns, and a front-gable roof clad with asphalt 
shingles. 

The north facade is clad with wood shingles. The windows are eight-over-one wood sashes. The windows on the wing are 
grouped in threes. There are no doors on this fapade. 

The east fa?ade of the house is the secondary entry and faces the Miles River. The walls are clad with wood shingles. 
The building is entered through a central hinged four panel wood door with fifteen-light sidelights. The side entry doors are 
hinged five panel wood doors. The windows are a combination of six-over-one and eight-over-one wood sashes with an 
elliptical window on the second level. A bay window is located on the north end of the second story. The rear entry porch 
has a poured concrete floor, two fluted wood Doric columns, and a front-gable roof clad with asphalt shingles. 
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The south fagade is clad with wood shingles. The side entry door is a hinged four panel one-light wood door. The windows 
are six-over-one wood sashes with one six-over-six vinyl replacement units. 

The interior has six rooms on the first floor and eight rooms on the second floor. The floors are of wood planks with an 
open string staircase to the upper levels. The walls and ceiling are of plaster with a simple plaster cornice running through 
all rooms. 

There are five domestic outbuildings: a boathouse, tool shed, powerhouse, cook's house, and smokehouse. 

Boathouse, ca. 1923 
The boathouse is located at the end of a wood dock and is a one-story wood frame structure with an undivided interior 
space. The building rests on wood piers sunk into the river bottom. The walls are clad with six inch vertical wood planks. 
The side gable roof is clad with standing-seam metal. The building is accessed through a hinged wood plank door on the 
north facade. There are no windows. The interior of the building is unfinished with a wood plank floor. 

Tool House, ca. 1923 ' 
The tool house is a one-story wood frame structure with an undivided interior space. The building rests on a continuous 
brick foundation. The walls are clad with horizontal wood planks. The low-pitched hipped roof with large overhanging 
eaves is clad with standing-seam metal. The building is accessed through a hinged wood plank door on the east fagade. 
The windows are six-pane wood hopper sashes. The interior of the building is unfinished with a wood plank floor. 

Powerhouse, ca. 1923 ! . 
The powerhouse is a two-story wood frame structure with a double pen plan. The building rests on a continuous brick 
foundation. The wails are clad with wood shingles. The clipped gable roof with is clad with asphalt shingles. The front and 
side entries have hinged two panel one-light wood doors on the north and west fagades. The basement entry has a pair if 
hinged wood plank cellar doors. The windows are six-over-six wood sashes, with an arched six-over-six wood sash on the 
gable ends. The interior walls and ceiling are clad with beadboard. The interior has a wood plank floor and open wood 
stair to the second level. A wood frame greenhouse was originally attached to the rear of the building, but was removed 
due to deterioration ca. 1980. 

Cook's House/Help's Quarters, ca. 1923 
The building known as the Cook's House, or the Help's Quarters, is a two-story wood frame structure with an undivided 
interior space, originally used as a residence for the domestic help. The building rests on a continuous brick foundation. 
The walls are clad with board and batten. The front-gable roof is clad with asphalt shingles. The building is accessed 
through a hinged wood plank door on the east fagade. The windows are six-over-six wood sashes and six-pane wood 
hopper sashes. The building has an exterior side wall brick masonry chimney. A one seat privy with a shed roof is located 
on the north fagade. The interior walls and ceiling are clad with beadboard. A portion of the building has been removed. 

Smokehouse, date unknown 
The smokehouse is a one-story timber frame structure with an undivided inferior space. The building rests on a 
continuous poured concrete foundation. The walls are clad with six inch vertical wood planks. The front-gable roof is clad 
with standing-seam metal. Ventilators are located on the gable ends. The building is accessed through a hinged wood 
plank door on the east fagade. There are no windows. The interior of the building is unfinished with an earthen floor. The 
building has been moved to its current location from elsewhere on the property. 
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The agricultural complex consists of seven structures: a carriage house, garage, dairy barn, corncrib, animal shed, stable, 
and silo. 

Carriage House, ca. 1922 
The carriage house, constructed ca. 1922, is three bays wide and is of timber frame construction with open entries on the 
north and south fagades. The easternmost bay is a storage room. The structure rests on a continuous combination brick 
and poured concrete foundation. The walls are clad with beveled wood siding. The cross gambrel roof with clipped gable 
ends is clad With standing-seam metal and has a cupola at the intersection. The doors are hinged four panel wood doors 
with sliding Dutch doors on the side facades. The front hayloft door is arched. The windows are six-over-six wood sashes. 
The interior of the building is unfinished with an earthen floor in one bay, poured concrete in the second bay, and a wood 
plank floor in the third bay. The walls of the third bay are clad with wood planks. 

Dairy Barn, ca. 1922 
The dairy barn, constructed ca. 1922, is three bays deep and is of timber frame construction with a one-story milk house 
rear addition. The structure rests on a continuous poured concrete foundation. The walls are clad with beveled wood 
siding. The front-gable roof is clad with corrugated metal and has a cupola. The doors are hinged wood planks with 
diagonal bracing. The windows are two-pane steel hopper sashes. The interior of the building is unfinished with a poured 
concrete floor. Original plans of the barn in the possession of the current owner indicate that the barn was designed by the 
Extension Service, University of Maryland, Division of Agricultural Engineering, and that the design was either a free or 
low cost plan. 

Corncrib, ca. 1922 
The corncrib, constructed ca. 1922, is a one-story round structure with a metal frame constructed by the Iron Crib and Bin 
Company of Wooster, Ohio and has a 1909 patent date. The structure rests on a continuous poured concrete foundation. 
The walls are clad with pierced steel panels bolted together. The conical roof is clad with standing-seam metal. The door 
is a pierced steel panel. There are no windows. The interior of the building is unfinished with a poured concrete floor. 

Animal Shed/Stable, ca. 1922 and 1960 
The ten-bay animal shed and stable are connected structures that form an "L" shape. The stables are located on the 
eastern end. A portion of the southern end of the animal shed was enclosed in the 1960s and converted into a hen house. 
The animal shed rests on a poured concrete pier foundation. The walls are clad with six inch vertical wood plank siding. 
The shed roof is clad with standing-seam metal. The doors are hinged wood planks with diagonal bracing. The windows 
are four-pane wood fixed sashes. The interior of the building is unfinished with an earthen floor. The stable portion rests 
on a poured concrete pier foundation. The walls are clad with six inch vertical wood plank siding. The shed roof is clad 
with standing-seam metal. The Dutch doors are hinged wood planks with diagonal bracing. The windows are six-pane 
wood awning sashes. The interior of the building is unfinished with an earthen floor. 

Silo, ca. 1920 
The silo, constructed ca. 1920, is of glazed hollow-tile construction and rests on a poured concrete pad. The silo has a 
hipped roof clad with standing-seam metal. An enclosed metal ladder is located on the north fa?ade. 

Garage, ca. 1980 
The garage is of modern construction. 

Tenant House #1, ca. 1910 
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Tenant house #1, constructed ca. 1910, is a one-and-a-half story wood frame structure with a hall-parlor plan. According 
to a past caretaker, the building was the original main house for the property and was moved to this location ca. 1922 to 
make room for the construction of the current main residence. The building rests on a continuous concrete masonry unit 
foundation. The building is clad with aluminum siding. The side gable roof is clad with asphalt shingles and has a paired 
gable roof dormer on the front fagade. The central entry door is flanked by paired nine-over-one wood sashes. The' 
windows are a combination of nine-over-one, eight-over-one, and six-over-one wood sashes. A curved bay window is' 
located on the west fa?ade. The building has two interior brick masonry chimneys. The integral front porch has four 
square wood columns and a wood plank floor. The rear porch has been enclosed with screening. The interior was not 
accessible at the time of the survey. 

Gas House, ca. 1922 
A one-story octagonal wood frame gas house, constructed ca. 1922, with an undivided interior plan is located to the rear 
of tenant house #1. The building encloses a brick lined pit. The exterior walls and conical roof are clad with wood shingles. 
The upper portions of the walls are louvered wood panels. The door is a hinged plywood panel. 

Tenant House #2, ca. 1930 '• 
Tenant house #2, constructed ca. 1930, is a one-story wood frame structure with a hall-parlor plan. The building rests on 
a poured concrete pier foundation with plywood panels infilling the space between piers. The building is clad with 
asbestos shingles, embossed with a wood texture. The broken side gable roof is clad with asphalt shingles. The hinged 
two panel four-pane wood entry door is offset. The windows are paired six-over-one wood sashes. The building has a 
central brick masonry chimney. The integral front porch has four square wood columns and a wood plank floor. The 
interior was not accessible at the time of the survey. 

. • • • ' : ' 

Machinery Shed, date unknown 
A machinery shed is located to the east of tenant house #2 and faces southwest. It is three bays wide and is of timber 
frame construction with an open southwest fagade. The shed rests on a combination pier and continuous poured concrete 
foundation. The walls are clad with vertical wood planks. The offset side gable roof is clad with standing-seam metal. 
There are no doors or windows. The interior of the building is unfinished with an earthen floor. 

Tenant House #3, ca. 1890 
Tenant house #3, constructed ca. 1890, is a two-story wood frame structure with a three room shotgun plan. The building 
rests on a continuous brick masonry foundation. The building is clad with aluminum siding. The front-gable roof is clad 
with asphalt shingles. The hinged four panel wood entry door is offset. The windows are six-over-six wood sashes. The 
building has two central brick masonry chimneys. The front porch has a wood plank floor, three turned wood columns and 
hipped roof clad with asphalt shingles. The interior was not accessible at the time of the survey. 
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Period 

_ 1600-1699 

_ 1700-1799 
X 1800-1899 
X 1900-1999 

2000-

Areas of Significance 

X_ agriculture 
archeology 

X_ architecture 
_ art 

commerce 
communications 

_ community planning 
conservation 

Checl< and justify below 

economics health/medicine performing arts 
education industry philosophy 
engineering invention politics/government 
entertainment/ _x landscape architecture religion 
recreation law science 

ethnic heritage literature social history 
exploration/ maritime history transportation 
settlement military other: 

Specific dates 1914-1920; 1920-1939 Architect/Builder J. Franklin Meehan & Son, landscape arctiltect; 
Extension Service, University of Maryland, Division of Agricultural 
Engineering 

Construction dates ca. 1910, 1922-23 

Evaluation for: 

. National Register .Maryland Register not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the 
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

Summary Statement of Significance 
Chenar Farm represents the area of Agriculture between the years 1910 to 1925. The collection of agricultural buildings at 
Chenar Farm is associated with the historically important dairy industry in Talbot County and the property as a whole is 
associated with the historically important trend of the gentleman farmer in the county. This coincides with the rise and 
development of the dairy industry and the development of model farms and country estates owned by wealthy immigrants 
to Talbot County during the World War I (1914-1920) and the Post-War Recession, the Great Depression, and the New 
Deal (1920-1939) agricultural periods in Talbot County's history. The property retains several buildings that display the 
characteristics and building types associated with a high-end dairy operation in Talbot County during these periods. . 

Historical Baciiground ' ' 
The property known as Chenar Farm, also known variously as "Bennett's Neglect," "Mackay Farm," and "Sycamores," 
was purchased by James M. and Lida A. Cowgill in 1891 from Sarah A. Mackey, F. Eugenia Smith, and her husband, 
Sidney W. Smith. The Cowgills sold the property to Winfield Scott Way and his wife Kate A. in 1908, who owned the 
property until 1914 when it was purchased by Louis A. and Amanda J. Hazard. The Hazards sold the farm to Ernst 
Puttkammer in 1917. Henry F. DePuy purchased the property from Ernst Puttkammer and his wife in 1919 and began 
construction of the house, grounds, and agricultural buildings found on the property today. Mr. DePuy utilized earlier 
residences remaining on the property as tenant houses. The trustee of the DePuy Estate sold the property to Leia Bartlett 
Hughes in 1925. The property has remained within the Hughes family since that time. The property is currently an active 
grain farm with tenants, dairy operations ceased ca. 1945. 
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10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property 95.50 
Acreage of historical setting 95.50 
Quadrangle name St. Michaels, MP Quadrangle scale: 1: 24,000 

Verbal boundary description and justification 
The boundary of the surveyed property is marked as current boundary as described on Talbot County Tax Map 24, 
Grid 11, Parcel 37. The existing parcel portion is concurrent with the historic setting, and includes character-defining 
resources and setting which relate to the property's construction and evolution. 

11. Form Prepared by 

name/title Amy V. Barnes, Architectural Historian 

organization URS Corporation 

street & number 7101 Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 700 

city or town Bethesda 

date 

telephone 

state 

12-08-03 

301.652.2215 

MD 20814 

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature 
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Arttele 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only 
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

retum to; Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCD/DHCP 
100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023 
410-514-7600 
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